
AGENDA

Public Document Pack



Attleborough Development Partnership
Tuesday, 25th April, 2017

Page(s)
herewith

1. ATTLEBOROUGH DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP AGENDA - 25 
APRIL 2017 

FIELD_PAGE_
RANGE_ONLY

2. ATTLEBOROUGH DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP MINUTES - 21 
FEBRUARY 2017 

FIELD_PAGE_
RANGE_ONLY



25 April 2017 @ 2.00pm

Attleborough Town Hall, Queen’s Square, Attleborough

AGENDA

Item 
No.

Subject Lead* Timing

1 Minutes of last meeting CB 2.05 – 2.10

2 Matters Arising CB 2.10 – 2.15

3 Website AP 2.15 – 2.30

4 Ptarmigan / JTP Workshop and Outline Planning 
Application Update

Ptarmigan 
Rep

2.30 – 2.40

5 Update on Growth Fund Proposals and future 
engagement

RD 2.40 – 3.05

6 Project Sub-Group Priorities discussion PM 3.05 – 3.30

7 Neighbourhood Plan / Community Sub Group 
Update

TM / TP 3.30 – 3.45

8 Update on new schools development CH 3.45 – 3.50

9 Neighbourhood Plan TP / PM 3.50 – 3.55

10 Any Other Business 3.50 – 4.00

CB – Chris Batten 
AP – Andy Prior
RD – Richard Doleman
PM – Phil Mileham
TP - Tony Perkins
TM – Tim Mills

3

Agenda Item 1



The Attleborough Development Partnership
Minutes

Tuesday 21 February 2017 2.00pm – 4.00pm
Attleborough Town Hall, Queens Square, Attleborough, Norfolk, NR17 2AF

Chair: Chris Batten

Attendees:

Board Members
Richard Doleman (RD)(Norfolk County Council), Tim Mills (TM)(Breckland District Council) 
Tristan Ashby (TA)(Breckland District Council), Charles Campion (CC)(JTP), Tony Perkins 
(TP)(Attleborough Town Council), Gina Lopez (GL) (Attleborough Town Council), Craig Neilson 
(CN)(Ptarmigan Land), Alec Byrne (AB)(Norfolk County Council), Tig Armstrong (Tig)(Norfolk 
County Council), Elizabeth Burrows (EB)(Neighbourhood Plan Group), Jeremy Burton (JB)(Business 
Representative (Substitute Member), Marcia Solloway-Brown (MSB)(Besthorpe Parish Council), 
Rona Boggia (RB)(Old Buckenham Parish Council).

Officers: 

Minutes:
Helen McAleer (Breckland District Council)

Apologies:  Colin Kilby (Business Representative), Chris Hey (Norfolk County Council Education)

Item

Welcome and introduction of new Chairman

Introductions were made round the table.

Minutes & Actions Arising

Craig Neilson had not been present and had sent apologies for the 
previous meeting.  Apart from that amendment the Minutes were agreed.

Actions Arising:

 A meeting had taken place between the Town Council, Breckland 
District Council and Norfolk County Council.  Several valid 
points had been raised.  A further meeting is planned and a 
response on the points will be provided to the Town Council and 
would also be presented to the Board.  

 JB noted that over a hundred people had attended the Town 
Council’s public meeting.  A second Town Council/NCC meeting 
would be arranged to discuss the issues raised.

 A public speaking protocol had been produced.  It had not been 
published on the website yet.

HM/TM

Logo and Website

TM distributed the suggested logo, which was approved by the Group.  It 
would be added to the website.

The micro-site would be updated and the design and access would be 
improved.

It was agreed that background information should be added to the site.  

4

Agenda Item 2



Draft wording would be circulated for comment before it was published.

The Chairman asked if all the necessary checks had been done on the 
logo and it was confirmed that they had.

TM/MB

Project sub-group Update

TM updated the Group in PM’s absence.  

The sub-group was creating a consolidated list to provide an over-view of 
all projects.  The partnership could then decide which projects it could 
support.  A sample of the layout of the spreadsheet was tabled along with 
a list of themes for the projects to be grouped under.  The final page was 
an example project layout.

JB asked where the list had come from and was advised that the 
information had been collated from various sources including NCC, 
BDC, Ptarmigan and the Attleborough Neighbourhood Plan.

MSB said there should be a disability cross-project theme.

It was agreed that each project should be checked to see if an equality 
impact assessment was required.

EB thought that it was an important issue and that all projects should 
consider the needs of the less able and disadvantaged. 

Tig pointed out that it was a list to show what other agencies were doing 
to inform the Board and each of those agencies would have their own 
protocols.  The Board would not own the projects.

RD thought it raised broader governance issues about what the Board was 
trying to achieve which might need to be clarified.

TM agreed to check the Terms of Reference of the Board to see if they 
should be amended.  He would ask the sub-group to include reference to 
equality in the spreadsheet.

The list of themes was read out for the benefit of the public.  TP pointed 
out that some projects could be included under several theme headings 
and it was agreed that PM be asked to consider how to deal with that.

It was clarified that any organisation could pursue a project on their own 
and could have their project included in the list.  It was proposed to have 
a simple ‘new projects’ form for people to use to notify the Partnership of 
their projects.  

The aim was to have representatives from all community groups on the 
sub-group.

TM

PM

Neighbourhood Plan / Community sub-group Update

There were on-going discussions about the future of the Neighbourhood 
Steering Group.  The Town Council had resolved to support the 
Neighbourhood Plan Group becoming a sub-group.  The Plan was almost 
finished but a lot of keen people from that group still wanted to be 
involved.

TM would develop a proposal to bring to the next meeting.  He did not 
want to lose people with so much local knowledge and said it was good 
news that they still wanted to be involved.

TM

5



Neighbourhood Plan

TP was pleased to say that the Neighbourhood Plan was now finished.  It 
had been a massive undertaking and had taken a lot of time and effort.  It 
would be presented to the Steering Group for approval and then to the 
Town Council before being submitted to BDC for consultation before 
being passed on to the Inspector.

Ptarmigan / JTP Workshop and Outline Planning Application 
Update

CN presented apologies from Charles Campion.  

Things were going very well.  A community exhibition was being 
planned which would be held over two days.  No date had been fixed yet.  
At the previous exhibition a number of topics had been covered by work-
groups and the same format was planned again.  The agenda would 
include an update on the Neighbourhood Plan, a presentation about the 
planning application and feedback from the previous meeting, before 
breaking up into topic groups.  The public exhibition should be close to 
the final scheme but there would still be an opportunity to take comments 
from the public.

It was hoped that the planning application would be submitted in the 
summer.

EB asked what was happening with the Link Road and she was advised 
that there would be a stakeholder workshop on 31 March when it would 
be discussed.  

JB asked if there had been any progress on getting funding for the relief 
road.

CN said that discussions were taking place with NCC about loan funding.  
He was aware that early delivery of the road would be a win for everyone.  

JB asked the NCC representatives if there had been any progress.

Tig advised that they had received draft Heads of Terms and would be 
getting together to discuss those.

EB was concerned that progress was very slow.  She wanted confirmation 
of a start date.  It was pointed out that there was a huge amount of money 
involved and it took a lot of time.  NCC was weighing up the use of 
public money.  It was complicated work for officers and then it would go 
to Committee and possibly full Council.  It was unlikely to be resolved in 
the next six months.  However, there were direct discussions taking place 
with the Head of Finance and they were working through the process.

JB asked if there was anything the Town could do to push things forward.  

Tig suggested that if the Partnership had a strong view it would not hurt 
to make it known that speeding up the process was a priority for the ADP.

CN pointed out that things could only go a certain distance before the 
planning application had to be submitted.

TM would put some words together and circulate them for approval, for 
the Chairman to write making representation on behalf of the ADP.  The 
letter should include reference to the strength of public concern about the 
road.

6



RB would ask Old Buckenham Parish Council to send a letter of support 
as well, as the development would have an impact on the Parish.

CN welcomed anything that would push the matter to the top of the 
priority list for NCC.

TM/CB

RB

Public Questions to the Panel

The public speaking protocol was tabled.  The Chairman allocated 30 
minutes for public speaking and asked Partners to volunteer to answer 
any questions.

 What measures were being proposed to prevent most of the traffic 
from the new development going through Great Ellingham?

RD explained that the planning application would include a transport 
assessment.  The impacts of the link road on the surrounding road 
network would be part of that.  The assessment would form part of the 
supporting evidence to the planning application and would be in the 
public domain and open for comment.

 Traffic had already increased on the Breckland Lodge 
Roundabout and with the new housing it would need looking at.

CN confirmed that the junction would be modified with a dedicated left 
turn lane.

 The town centre gyratory system and the new development did 
not seem to take account of safety issues for pedestrians, cyclists 
and disabled buggy users.  Was anything planned to improve the 
integration?

RD confirmed that NCC were working to make sure that there would be 
improvements for all modes of transport, not just cars.  The transport 
assessment would show how the development would be fit for purpose.  
The aim would be to ensure there were plenty of opportunities for 
sustainable travel.

 Would the money be spent early?  If not, it would not help.

RD explained that as there was no planning application yet it was difficult 
to answer, as the application would show the phases of development and 
infrastructure.

 It had been talked about improving the town centre in the short 
term until the link road was brought in.  That would not be a good 
idea.  The link road should be designed with the town centre in 
mind.

CN agreed that a permanent solution was needed.  It had been discussed 
that morning and another meeting would take place next week.  It was 
high on the agenda.

 When would the funding be available for the link road?

RD said that the link road was an integral part of the scheme and was a 
requirement of the development.  It would be the developer’s 
responsibility to deliver it.  

CN explained that the discussion was about when it would come forward.  
At the moment that would not happen until the first 1200 houses had been 

7



delivered, but everyone wanted it done earlier than that.

 Due to the economic growth in the town and the dualling of the 
A11, serious congestion was affecting the local economy.  Could 
it be considered as a matter of urgency?

Yes.

 The Norfolk area had received £4.6million for road 
improvements.  Was that money ring-fenced for improvements in 
Attleborough?  A two-way scheme for Surrogate Street would be 
a good start.

RD explained that the money was from a funding bid and had been given 
for improvements in Attleborough, with rules attached.  The objective 
was to meet the spend-profile or the money could be lost to the local area.

 Did the other improvements to health centres, education, etc have 
the same funding restrictions?

CN said that was S106 money was not in the developer’s control.  He was 
in discussion with NCC about prioritising how that money was spent.

TM noted that the ADP provided a coordinated group to pursue other 
funding opportunities on behalf of Attleborough.  It would identify 
projects and then work out how to get funding and how to deliver what 
Attleborough wanted.

AB pointed out that in the meantime £27million was already being spent 
in Attleborough.  A lot of work was going on, but he acknowledged that 
progress did seem slow.

AOB

Tm said that some questions had been raised about the Membership of the 
Board and its governance structure.  Some people did not have substitutes 
and he urged them to nominate someone to fill that role.  Voting rights 
transferred to substitutes.

People were asked to e-mail TM with any changes and then an updated 
list would be circulated. 

All

Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting would be held on 25 April 2017.  

A list of future meeting dates would be circulated.  (Attached to the 
Minutes).

8


	Agenda
	1 Attleborough Development Partnership Agenda - 25 April 2017
	2 Attleborough Development Partnership Minutes - 21 February 2017

